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At the laying of the cornerstone in 1890 the plans for the Temple were described by the
Salt Lake Tribune.

"This building is remarkable from (sic) its being a facsimile
in miniature of the great temple in Berlin, Germany. The size
is 55 x 112 feet, including the vestibule. There will be two
wings and it will seat 500 people. A fourteen foot gallery
over the chancel will accommodate a $3,500 organ and a choir.
The interior height is forty feet, while, toward the rear of
edifice, towers a mosque-like dome eighty-eight feet in the
air. The font is of cut Kyune stone, the sides and rear
being of pressed brick and the style is Moorish. The cost of
the temple complete will be $37,500. The supervising architect
is H. Mondheim, the contractors Joy & Black. The building will
be an ornament to the city."

(From Salt Lake Tribune, 27, Sept. 1890)

The structure once completed was in fact as much an ornament to the city as it was a state-
ment of Jewish wealth and importance. The similarity to the Fasanenstrasse synagogue in
Berlin, the "great temple" that local pride had wished to emulate, was somewhat remote. It
has been suggested that Philip Meyer's original plans were modified during construction by
Henry Monheim. The building in Berlin was an immense and decidedly neo-Byzantine structure
with three domes; the B'Nai Israel temple in Salt Lake City was Romanesque Revival with
many eclectic flourishes.

The plan as executed holds to the dimensions originally laid out by Meyer and Mondheim:

55 x 112 feet by 40 feet hight, excepting the dome which is 88 feet. The facade of the
building, high lighted by two fine stained-glass windows, is of rusticated Kyune stone

with corner elements more finely cut. A strong string course divides the building. The
front cornice of the building and the cornice of the dome are bracketed. The dome 1s of
brick covered with stucco, as are the side exterior walls. The roof is alcross shaped gable
with the dome at the crossing, with gabled roofs over the arms of the cross. Some classical
motifs can be found in the exterior decoration, especially atop the main facade and repeated
on both North and South projecting wings.

A central nave has an apsidal end formed by the dome, with a narthex at the west end.

Within the nave side aisles radiate north and south and into pillared alcoves that support
galleries on the north and south. There are choir lofts at both ends of the nave, one
backed by the stained-glass windows of the facade, and the other behind and above the
sanctuary of the ark. Access to the choir lofts and galleries is through corner stairways
located at the east end of the nave and in the northex. The sanctuary area is distinguished
by fine decorative carpentry.

" Tn 1929 a concrete block addition was made to the temple on the east end. It contains a
kitchen, social area, and classrooms. It has no merit.

The building is basically sound and is now in use as a restaurant, having been sold by
Congregation B'Nai Israel in order that they could join with Congregation Montefiore to
form a unified Reform and Orthodox commnity synagogue known as Congregation Kol Ami.
Points of deterioration include same brickwork and stonework scattered around the building,
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but especially around the porch area at the main entrance. Recent beneficial changes include
opening up the galleries which had been closed off to provide classroom space. The interior

space remains basically unaltered, although the restaurant decoration of the space is ex-
ceedingly lavish.
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The Temple of Congregation B'Nai Israel was the culmination of the community building
efforts of Utah's pioneer Jews, who, despite being few in number, played an important part
in the social, economic, and political development of Utah.

Utah's earliest Jews were converts to Mormonism, and among these the most prominent were
Alexander Neibaur, a surgeon who arrived in 1848, and Morris Rosenbaum, a merchant, who
embraced Mormonism after his arrival in 1854. In that same year of 1854 Julius Gerson
Broocks and his wife Fanny arrived in Utah to begin entreprenecurial careers that would
establish both husband and wife as leading merchants in these early years of settlement.

Jewish movement into Utah did not accelerate until after the conclusion of the Utah War
of 1857, and the establishment of a United States military presence in the territory. At
that time an increasing number of Jewish merchants end peddlers, as well as craftsmen,
took advantage of the improved business climate generally and opportunities for supplying
troops in particular, to found many business houses. From this period of the late fifties
and early sixties come the Jewish names important in the development of Utah....Auerbach,
Bamberger, Ranschoff (Ranschoff), Kahn, Siegel, FEllis, and Watters. There were many sets
of brothers among these early entrepreneurs, and most had honed their business skills in
the mining camps of California and Nevada. Practically all of them were bachelors during
the early years of building up their businesses in Utah, and it is interesting to note
that Jews are not well organized as a community --with the exception of gatherings to

- celebrate High Holy Days --until significant numbers of Jewish women are brought to Utah
as the wives of these successful businessmen.

A curious feature of Jewish life in pioneer Utah was that of their position of "favored
Gentiles" within the larger Mormon commmnity of Utah that thought of itself as Latter-day
Israel. Mormonism also gave emphasis to certain Jewish beliefs and practices not usually
found in Christian churches, and, as one Utah Jewish historian has pointed out, there was
a fascination with Jewish history and ritual among leaders of the Mormon Church. The very
territory of Utah closely resembled ancient Palestine in topography and character, even to
the parallel of two Jordan rivers, each connecting a dead sea-water lake with a body of
fresh water. The result of this identity of interest was cordial and supportive treatment
of Jews by Mormons in the earliest settlement phase. However, the economic development

of the territory inevitably led to the polarization of Mormon and Gentile business activity,
with Jews teking positions of leadership in the Gentile group by reason of their rnumbers
and prominence.

The creation by Brigham Young of the Zions Cooperative Mercantile Institution to monopolize
trade within the Mormon community, caused several Jewish merchants to withdraw from Utah
or to sell out to the Church in 1869. The slightly reduced Jewish/Gentile group quickly
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regained 1ts economic strength, however through involvement in mining speculation and
development. Mormons, with one or two exceptions, followed Church counsel to avoid mining
ventures.

For many years Jewish religious services utilized private homes, Masonic halls, or premises
lent to them by the Mormon Church. In 1881 leading Jews of Salt Lake City came together
to incorporate as "B'Nai Israel of Salt Lake City." A small lot was purchased, and even-
tually the first synagogue was dedicated in 1883. Located at the northwest corner of
First West and Third South Streets, this synagogue also served as a Hebrew school.

Difficulties in retaining the services of a Rabbi and bitter internal squabbling over the
majority decision to turn to Reform ritual, eventually caused a fift in the Salt Lake

Jewlsh community that was an echo of the schisms in American Jewry in the late 19th Century.
Those who chose to remain with Orthodox practices separated from B'Nai Israel, and eventually
incorporated as Congregation Montefiore.

Mearwhile, the soclal status of Utah's Jews demanded a more distinguished structure in
which to worship. In 1889 land was purchased at the present site and by 1891 a large and
imposing synagogue had been dedicated. The Salt Lake Tribune described it as having "an
air of quiet elegance" and asserted that "a more attractive place of worship does not
exist in the west."

In deciding that their temple should be a replica of the Great Synagogue of Berlin, Utah's
Jews made a gesture to the original homeland of most of their mumber. The architect
chosen to execute the design was Philip Meyer, a nephew of Utah magnate Frederick H. Auver-
bach, who was brought from Germany to work with local architect Henry Monheim. Meyer

later returned to Germany where he became an architect in the service of the Prussian state
and of the Imperial household, and much later, sadly, ended his life in a Nazi death camp

in 1943.

The importance of B'Nai Israel is that it represents the fruits of meny years of Jewish
activity and commmnity building in Utah; it is a visible symbol of the importance of Jews
in the development of the state, Commerce, government --the second Jewish governor of an
American state was Simon Bamberger, elected in 1916 --and many branches of education and
the arts have been enhanced by the contributions of Utah's Jewish citizens. B'Nai Israel
temple is one of the last remaining tangible achievements of Utah's ploneer Jews.
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